
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 
COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

BOARD ROOM 

Thursday, August 3, 2023 
1:30 p.m. 

Remote Option 
To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You do 
not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work.  

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 
Meeting ID: 291 027 165 89 

Passcode: rqjjZV 

To participate by phone, use the conference call information below. 

614-362-3056 United States, Columbus
(888) 596-2819 United States (Toll-free)

Phone Conference ID: 603 531 632#

AGENDA 

1. Welcome – Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair

2. Consent Agenda

• Approval of June 1, 2023 minutes

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, Executive Director

4. Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer

5. Committee Updates

• Regional Policy Roundtable – Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs &
Community Relations

• Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization – Nick Gill, Interim Senior Director of
Programming & Transportation Study Director

• Transportation Policy Committee – Nick Gill, Interim Senior Director of Programming &
Transportation Study Director

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTEwYTk0YmYtYjZhOS00YTNkLTg4NjUtOTY1NGU5Y2MxZWIw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,603531632# 
tel:8885962819,,603531632# 


 
 

 

Executive Committee Meeting Agenda 
August 3, 2023 
Page 2 

• Regional Data Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & 
Senior Director of Planning 

o Proposed Resolution 09-23: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2023-2025 Regional 
Data Agenda” 

 
6. Community Based Planning Assistance – Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & 

Senior Director of Planning  

 
7. Drive Investment Update – Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs & Community 

Relations  

 
8. Proposed Resolution 10-23: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into an 

intergovernmental agreement with the Central Ohio Transit Authority for Transit 
Supportive Infrastructure” – Nick Gill, Interim Senior Director of Programming & 
Transportation Study Director 

 
9. Proposed Resolution 11-23: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into agreements 

with the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) for the July 1, 2023 through June 30, 
2027 Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) and enter into related 
subcontracts” – Robert Williams, Senior Director of Residential Services 
 

10. Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, Membership Services Officer  

 
11. Draft Commission Agenda 

 
12. Other Business 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org 
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
The next Executive Committee Meeting is 
Thursday, September 7, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC 
visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the side of 
MORPC’s building. Electric vehicle charging stations are available for MORPC guests. 
 
Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests. 
 
MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC is S. Front Street & W. 
Blenkner St. Buses that accommodate this stop are the Number 61 - Grove City, the Number 5 - 
West 5th Ave. /Refugee, and the Number 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. MORPC is accessible by COTA 
BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High Street & W. Blenkner Street. Buses that 
accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Ave./Refugee, and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons.  The 
closest stop to MORPC northbound is High Street & E. Hoster Street.  Buses that accommodate this 
stop are the 5 - West 5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. Accessible from the 
Courthouse stop by a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and CMAX. 



 
Members Attending in Person 
Karen Angelou 
Jeff Benton 
Franklin Christman 

Michelle Crandall 
Jennifer Gallagher 
Erik Janas 

Greg Lestini 
David Scheffler

 
Members Attending Remotely 
Nancy White  
 
MORPC Staff Attending in Person 
Kerstin Carr 
Joe Garrity 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Níel Jurist 
Eileen Leuby 

Kelsey Matson 
William Murdock 
Alisa Obukhova 
Anthony Perry 
Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 
Cory Tressler 
Robert Williams

 
MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Andrea Doolittle Betsy Hunkar 

 
Guests Attending in Person 
Joshua Louge, Plante Moran 
 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Kristin Hunt, Plante Moran Daniel Van Epps 
 
Welcome – Michelle Crandall 
Acting Chair Michelle Crandall called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Audited Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler, Joshua Louge, Kristin Hunt 
Shawn Hufstedler provided background on the 2022 financial audit. This was the first full year for 
Account Manager Alisa Obukhova who led the process. This was Finance Director Anthony Perry’s 
second year. Mr. Hufstedler thanked Mr. Perry, Ms. Obukhova, Betsy Hunkar, and the Finance Team 
for their excellent work on this year’s audit. The 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 
is a product of the whole agency; all programs are reflected. Mr. Hufstedler thanked the Residential 
Services Team especially as their programs were the federal programs audited this year. Mr. Hufstedler 
introduced Kristin Hunt and Joshua Louge from Plante Moran and thanked them for their collaboration. 
Ms. Hunt and Mr. Louge gave an overview of the 2022 ACFR. 
 
Plante Moran performed two audits. The ACFR and the federal single audit (required when an agency 
spends more than $750,000 in federal grant money). Both audits are presented in draft form but are 
ready to go final. Presenting them to the Executive Committee is part of the process. A clean opinion is 
the highest that can be provided. There are no findings which is excellent.  
 
Two immaterial adjustments were noted: net pension asset related to OPERS combined plan and the 
increased liability/decreased revenue for building lease related to GASB 87. Neither rise to the 
significant level nor materially affect the financial statements. The Federal Compliance Audit was on the 
CDBG and Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Programs.   
 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

  
Date: June 1, 2023 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Board Room 



Executive Committee Minutes 

June 1, 2023 

Page 2 

 
Greg Lestini made a motion to accept and submit MORPC’s 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report in substantially the form presented today to the Auditor of State for approval, second by Jeff 
Benton; motion passed. David Scheffler abstained. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Erik Janas made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Franklin Christman; motion 
passed. 
 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 
William Murdock and Kerstin Carr shared highlights of their trip to the ULI Conference in Toronto. They 
saw great examples of development including affordable housing, multi-use space, greenspace, and 
transit. The private sector is involved in affordable housing. 
 
Mr. Murdock, Shawn Hufstedler and Joe Garrity are attending the National Association of Regional 
Councils Annual Conference in Detroit next week.  
 
MORPC is close to being able to announce the new Chief Mobility Officer. We posted a job position for 
an Economic Development Director & Regional Innovation Officer. We elevated the Economic 
Development Director position based on the work going on with the EDA, and on the work we are doing 
with The Columbus Partnership on regional tech hubs. MORPC is the lead applicant for a regional tech 
hub designation. Part of that includes creating a consortium of interest. The new position will lead the 
consortium. MORPC is meeting weekly with The Columbus Partnership and Ernst & Young on the 
application which is due August 15. 
 
Mr. Murdock announced he was appointed to The Ohio State University Medical Center Health Equity 
Advisory Board. They have partnerships all over Central Ohio. 
 
Níel Jurist reported MORPC will unveil our new messaging the third week of June. We will share it with 
the Board before it goes out to the general public. Printed materials will be available at the August 
Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Murdock shared that Maria Schaper will be giving an update later about upcoming resolutions in 
August with LinkUS after the COTA board approves them, which is expected in July. They will set in 
motion a transformative process for us.  
 
Mr. Murdock announced Paving the Way is sunsetting. Dr. Carr shared that the program usage is 
extremely low as other resources such as Google Maps have filled the community need. Team 
Members will determine who has been using it and notify them later this summer and then work to 
identify potential tools to better connect community project plans into new and existing systems.  
 
Invitations to participate in MORPC’s Annual Salary Survey will be sent soon. Last year, 100 percent of 
Executive Committee member communities participated. The survey is a useful tool on member visits. 
 
Mr. Murdock began an in-depth discussion of the Residential Services program. The Weatherization 
Analysis & Next Steps provided background, potential scenarios and recommended actions on a 
possible positive expansion of the program.  MORPC’s weatherization program is funded by Columbia 
Gas (WarmChoice) and the Ohio Department of Development (home weatherization or HWAP). The 
WarmChoice service area is all of Franklin County. The HWAP service area is serviced by three 
providers: MORPC, IMPACT, and Ground Level Solutions (GLS). The current program structure 
creates a gap necessitating a subsidy impacting MORPC’s reserves. On the other hand, the community 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/06-01-2023-Wx-Briefing.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/06-01-2023-Wx-Briefing.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

June 1, 2023 

Page 3 

 
impact has outweighed the cost of the MORPC subsidy due to large economic and environmental 
benefits as well as being an important housing stabilization tool. After reviewing Residential Services’ 
2023 priority items and potential scenarios for eliminating the subsidy, Mr. Murdock shared 
recommended actions that will allow MORPC to move forward with expanding weatherization which 
should improve the financial performance and also allow MORPC an option to monitor progress next 
year to determine if this is a long-term option for sustainability. Mr. Murdock shared budget projections 
for the expansion. This is reflected in Resolution 07-23. 
 
Mr. Murdock welcomed MORPC’s new Strategic Director of Technology, Cory Tressler. Mr. Tressler 
comes from Apple and is excited to meet everyone. 
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated MORPC Diversity, Inclusion & Engagement Officer Ralonda Hampton for 
being recognized by the Columbus Urban League as a Herstory Mover & Shaker. 
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated Michelle Crandall for being named by Columbus Business First as a 
Woman of Influence. 
 
Upcoming events: 

• MORPC Night at the Clippers – June 7, Huntington Park – Michelle Crandall is throwing the first 
pitch. 

• Riverfest activities 
o Accelerating Change for Clean Water panel discussion – June 2, Tyson Cultural Arts 

Center 
o Columbus Arts Festival – June 10-11 – free canoeing, kayaking, paddleboarding 

• Rural Service Strategy – Rural Housing – June 21, Plain City 

 
Robert Williams gave an update on a new marketing strategy for weatherization. The strategy focuses 
on older adults in Franklin County. We are working with community and senior centers across the 
region to assist the target audience with determining eligibility, completing applications, gathering 
documentation and answering questions. We will also hold monthly office hours by appointment to help. 
Mr. Williams asked Executive Committee members for help in identifying locations in their communities. 
 
Regional Policy Roundtable – Joseph Garrity 
Joe Garrity provided a legislative update highlighting: 

• U.S. House voted to increase the debt ceiling. 
o Every Central Ohio Representative voted for it. 
o Cuts government funding by one percent. 
o New work requirements for SNAP and other restrictions for certain social safety net 

programs. 

• The May 16 Regional Policy Roundtable included House Minority Leader Allison Russo. 
o Provided updates on House operating and transportation budgets. 
o Pragmatic and friendly dynamic in the House. 
o Expressed concern that the low-income housing tax credits will not remain in the budget. 

• MORPC submitted testimony on the state operating budget. 

• HB 64 – Eminent Domain. 

• The next Regional Policy Roundtable meeting is August 15. 

• MORPC will provide a letter to the Conference Committee advocating including the brownfield 
remediation program in the operating budget. 

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

June 1, 2023 

Page 4 

 
Regional Data Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr 
Kerstin Carr reported the Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) will review the Regional Data 
Agenda at its June 6 meeting. If adopted, the RDAC Chair will provide an overview of the agenda at the 
June 8 Commission meeting. The agenda will be presented for adoption by the Commission in August. 
 
Once the agenda is approved, RDAC leadership will transition to Christina Drummond as the new chair. 
 
MORPC’s Data Team is getting ready to request permit data to estimate population counts more 
accurately. We are testing a new methodology so we can streamline the process and be more 
accurate.  
 
Sustainability Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr 
Kerstin Carr reported the City of Columbus, with MORPC as their key partner, submitted the Climate 
Pollution Reduction Grant application last week. Furthermore, MORPC is moving forward with the 
Charging & Fueling Infrastructure Grant application. The deadline was extended to the middle of June. 
We have over 60 sites across the 15-county region willing to install infrastructure. Most of them are 
committing more than the twenty percent match.  
 
Dr. Carr encouraged members to attend the Riverfest events mentioned earlier. MORPC Senior 
Planner Edwina Teye is moderating the June 3 water panel discussion. 
 
Dr. Carr shared air quality alerts are issued for June 1 and 2.  
 
Transportation Policy Committee – Maria Schaper 
Maria Schaper reported the 2023 Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) application period 
closed May 31. Ten applications from the MPO were submitted totaling $358 million in requests. One 
application was submitted from the CORPO area. Ms. Schaper will share more information on the 
applications at the Commission meeting. The public comment period and prioritization process will start 
soon. 
 
MORPC received notice that we should anticipate an annual allocation of just over $1 million for capital 
projects in the CORPO area for FY 2024-2025. This is double the amount of the previous cycle. 
MORPC will begin a solicitation for applications and conduct a selection process similar to that done in 
FY 2022-2023. 
 
The LinkUS partners shared a final draft of the proposed Transit Supportive Infrastructure (TSI) 
Committee Structure. The draft document was shared with all jurisdictions in COTA’s service area. The 
jurisdictions are invited to a workshop on June 9, where the hope is to confirm regional consensus on 
the draft and committee structure. The document will also be an exhibit in the Interagency Agreement 
between MORPC and COTA that outlines the responsibilities of each agency in the administration and 
management of the TSI Committees. A resolution to authorize this agreement will be brought before the 
COTA Board of Trustees at their July meeting and before MORPC’s Board and Policy Committee in 
August. MORPC and COTA will enter a separate MOU identifying that 27.5% of the potential new sales 
tax be apportioned for the Transit Supportive Infrastructure program.  A resolution to authorize this 
agreement will also go before the COTA Board of Trustees in July and MORPC’s Board and Policy 
Committee in August. 
 
ODOT is awarding MORPC $300,000 in state dollars for our mobility management program. The funds 
need to be spent in FY 2024. The proposed budget includes outreach and advertising; travel training 



Executive Committee Minutes 

June 1, 2023 

Page 5 

 
materials; annual fees for the Gohio Commute and Gohio Mobility platforms; and professional 
development/training opportunities for staff. 
 
Proposed Resolution 08-23: “Authorizing the executive director to approve a grant agreement 
between the Ohio Department of Transportation and MORPC for the Mobility Management 
Program” – Maria Schaper 
Franklin Christman made a motion to approve Resolution 08-23, second by David Scheffler; motion 
passed. 
 
Proposed Resolution 06-23: “Adopting a fee schedule for use in assessing members in 2024” – 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Although the memo shows a five-year projected schedule, this resolution only authorizes the fee 
schedule for 2024. The proposed increase is under the inflation rate but recognizes the impact of 
inflation. There is also a small bump in the minimum fee which hasn’t been increased in ten years. 
Population estimates come in the fall and will provide actual rates for members and incorporated in the 
2024 budget voted on in December.  
 
Erik Janas made a motion to approve Resolution 06-23, second by Karen Angelou; motion passed. 
 
Proposed Resolution 07-23: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into agreements with 
the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) for the 2024 Home Weatherization Assistance 
Program (HWAP) and to enter into related subcontracts” – Robert Williams 
This resolution accepts the standard agreement with ODOD and includes the expansion reviewed 
earlier. 
 
Jennifer Gallagher made a motion to approve Resolution 07-23, second by Greg Lestini; motion 
passed. 
 
Draft Commission Agenda 
The Executive Committee reviewed the draft June 8, 2023 Commission Meeting Agenda. 
 
Other Business 
Mr. Murdock reminded members there is no July Executive Committee meeting. 
 
Acting Chair Crandall congratulated William Murdock on being named to the Columbus Business First 
Power 100. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Michelle Crandall, Secretary 
Executive Committee 



MID-OHIO REGIONAL
PLANNING COMMISSION
FINANCIAL REPORT 
JUNE 2023



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO: William Murdock, Executive Director 
Executive Committee 

FROM: Shawn Hufstedler 
Chief Operating Officer 

DATE: July 27, 2023 

SUBJECT: Financial Report – June 2023 
 
 

Summary 
 

As of June 30, 2023, expenses totaled $7,498,182 and were well within appropriations. The 
operating reserve (investment and cash accounts) was $3,700,397. A net loss from all 
operations was recorded year-to-date. The actual fringe and indirect rate variances were 
unfavorable. 
 
 
Budget vs. Expenses  

 
Expenses through quarter ending June 30, 2023, totaled $7,498,182 or 32% of the year’s total 
budgeted expenses of $23,231,714. 

 
From a programmatic perspective, expenses differed from the budget for the following reasons: 

• Over-spending associated with Weatherization programs of $279,190 can be attributed to 
greater spending than budgeted at this point in the year for the Columbia Gas Warm Choice 
Program and the Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP), which are respectively 
over-budget by $112,353 and $165,704.  

• For the Columbia Gas Warm Choice Program, the budget included another 
$435,329 in potential funding and MORPC is exploring various initiatives that could 
increase funding and/or reduce spending, including receiving increased HWAP 
funding. 

  



• For HWAP, over-spending is a result of more expenses occurring in the second half 
of the state fiscal year compared to the first half, versus the original estimate. The 
program ended the state fiscal year with expenses remaining within awarded levels. 
Funding will dramatically increase in the second half of the calendar year as a result 
of MORPC expanding its service area and receiving new funds established by the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill (BIL).  

 
• Under-spending with Transportation programs of $1,563,203 can be attributed to: 

• Less spending than budgeted of $1,071,024 for the FTA Section 5310 Program for 
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities. MORPC funds 
subgrants related to this program and subgrant payments are highly variable.  

• The Growth and Major Economic Development Planning (related to the Intel 
Project) started later than originally anticipated and is under-budget by $265,860. 

• Transportation programs have experienced greater personnel turnover than 
anticipated.  

 
MORPC also budgeted in the annual budget $3,472,911 for potential programs/projects that have not 
been funded at this time. 
 
 
Operating Cash/Reserve 

 
MORPC’s operating reserve consists of operating cash and investment accounts. As of June 30, 
2023, the cash account held $2,087,357, while the investment account had a balance of $1,613,040. 
The investment account is held in STAROhio. Combining both accounts equated to $3,700,397, or 
58 days of budgeted expenses, which is very close to the 60-day target threshold identified in the 
Operating Reserve Policy. Interest earned and allocated to the operating reserve year-to-date 
through June 30, 2023 was $38,359. 

 
 

Operating Income (Change in Net Position) 
 

There was a decrease in net position (loss from operations) for the year-to-date through June 30, 
2023. The decrease was ($802,608). The decrease was the result of: 

• A ($578,453) net loss year-to-date for programs funded by COTA in lieu of COVID and NTD 
(National Transit Database) funding, and TID (Transportation Improvement District) funding. 
This operating loss is due to the fact that revenue was recognized in prior years. 

• A ($197,577) net loss year-to-date for the Columbia Gas Warm Choice Program; and 
• A ($78,003) net loss year-to-date for depreciation related to leasehold improvements.  

 
The losses were partially offset by a gain of $41,353 to investment income and other miscellaneous 
gains of $10,073. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



Member Dues 
 

Member dues revenue was $633,132 for the year-to-date ending June 30, 2023. Use of member 
dues was over budget by $11,635. Use of all current year member dues was as follows: 

 
 

 
 
Fringe Benefit and Indirect (Overhead) Variances 

 

Fringe Benefits 
The actual fringe benefit cost rate for the year-to-date is 58.82%, which is greater than the budgeted 
rate of 57.50%, creating an unfavorable variance for the year-to-date of $26,422. 

 
Indirect (Overhead) 
The actual indirect cost variance for the year-to-date is 65.79% which is greater than the budgeted 
rate of 62.50%, resulting in an unfavorable variance for the year-to-date of $120,907. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Use of Member Dues 

 
Budget 

 
Actual 

Variance 
(Over)/Under 

Services to Members $438,331 $451,192 ($12,861) 

Local Matching Funds/Reserve $118,254 $117,807 $447 

Development Fund $56,301 $59,542 ($3,242) 

Building Lease $87,051 $87,415 ($364) 

Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion $24,915 $21,957 $2,958 

Other     $4,146   $2,719    $1,427 

Total $728,997 $740,632                    ($11,635) 



Statement of Net Position 
 

• On June 30, 2023, operating cash on hand was $2,087,357, which was equal to 33 days of 
budgeted cash flow. The operating reserve investment account was $1,613,040; and 
management reserve was $113,739. The remaining cash balance for the building 
reserve and essentially all the building improvement/maintenance fund were transferred to 
the operating cash account in 2022 to cover expenses from that fund associated with the now 
completed building renovation project. $71 remains in the building improvement/ maintenance 
fund as interest income exceeded expectations in the fourth quarter of 2022, resulting in the 
cash amount being slightly above the transfer authority granted in the 2023 budget. The 
intention was to reduce the balance to $0. 
 

• The Central Ohio Greenways Fund is administered and held by the Columbus Foundation 
and had a balance of $32,714.  
 

• Accounts Receivable totaled $1,759,801 compared to $2,496,432 as of June 30, 2022. The 
reduction can be attributed to more timely collection of outstanding receivables for grants 
from our funders. 
 

• Accounts Payable plus Other Accrued Liabilities totaled $850,520 compared to $1,379,725 
as of June 30, 2022. The reduction can be attributed to more timely payment by MORPC of 
vendor invoices as a result of the implementation of electronic workflow for invoice review, 
and a reduction in accrued payroll and fringe due to the timing of the payment of payroll.  
 

• The GASB Statement 68 Pension liability and the GASB Statement 75 OPEB (other 
postemployment benefits, i.e. retiree healthcare) asset have a net liability of $5,469,930 and 
represent estimates of the Commission’s proportional share of the unfunded liabilities/assets 
of the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The Government Accounting 
Standards Board mandates that these amounts be shown in the financial statements, but 
such amounts do not represent an actual legal liability of MORPC to OPERS per State of 
Ohio law. Excluding the impact of GASB Statements 68 and 75, net position would be 
approximately $5.5 million greater, or a positive balance of $5,179,300 as of June 30, 2023.



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE YEAR-TO-DATE ENDING JUNE 30, 2023  
 

  

Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Variance
Budget Actual under / (over)

Revenues
  Transportation 3,391,361$           1,828,158$           1,563,203$          

  Infrastructure & Econ. Dev. 598,361$              160,932$              437,428$             

  Planning & Sustainability 1,815,864$           1,577,290$           238,574$             

  Weatherization 1,604,944$           1,635,422$           (30,479)$              

  Housing 1,422,782$           801,116$              621,666$             

  Services to Members & Development 610,743$              622,825$              (12,082)$              

  Other 435,348$              69,832$                365,516$             

  Potential Funding 1,736,456$           -$                      1,736,456$          

Total Operating Revenues 11,615,857$         6,695,575$           4,920,282$          

Expenses by Program Area
  Transportation 3,391,361$           1,828,157$           1,563,203$          

  Infrastructure & Econ. Dev. 598,361$              496,892$              101,469$             

  Planning & Sustainability 1,815,864$           1,577,370$           238,494$             

  Weatherization 1,604,944$           1,884,134$           (279,190)$            

  Housing 1,422,782$           801,116$              621,666$             

  Services to Members & Development 610,743$              622,825$              (12,082)$              

  Other 435,348$              287,689$              147,658$             

  Potential Funding 1,736,456$           -$                      1,736,456$          

Total Expenses by Program Area 11,615,857$         7,498,182$           4,117,674$          

Expenses by Account Category
  Salaries and Benefits 4,959,791$           4,304,602$           655,189$             

  Materials and Supplies 100,989$              103,519$              (2,531)$                

  Services, Charges, & Other 3,206,913$           1,165,026$           2,041,888$          

  Subcontracted Services 3,254,049$           1,530,267$           1,723,782$          

  Depreciation and Amortization 94,116$                394,769$              (300,653)$            

Total Expenses by Account Category 11,615,857$         7,498,182$           4,117,675$          

Operations income (loss) (0)$                        (802,608)$             802,608$             

Increase (decrease) in net position (0)$                        (802,608)$             802,608$             



 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AS OF JUNE 30, 2023 

 

Balance at 
06/30/2023 
excludes 
impact of 

GASB 68 & 75

GASB 68 & 75 
06/30/2023

Balance at 
06/30/2023 
includes 
impact of 

GASB 68 & 75

Balance at 
06/30/2022 
includes 
impact of 

GASB 68 & 75

Yearly 
Difference

Assets
   Current Assets
      Cash          2,087,357          2,087,357          2,174,560             (87,203)
      Cash-Designated for Building Improvement                     71                     71             194,079            (194,008)
      Cash-Operating Reserve          1,613,040          1,613,040          1,328,500             284,540 
      Cash-Building Reserve                     -                       -               450,727            (450,727)
      Cash-Management Reserve             113,739             113,739             109,177                4,562 
      Cash-Greenways Fund              32,714              32,714              31,982                   732 
      Cash-Rapid 5 Project Fund                     -                       -                70,025             (70,025)
      Accounts Receivable          1,759,801          1,759,801          2,496,432            (736,631)
      Prepaid Expenses             205,582             205,582             103,413             102,170 
Total Current Assets          5,812,304          5,812,304          6,958,895         (1,146,590)
   Non-Current Assets                     -   
      Forgivable Mortgages                     -                       -                  3,255               (3,255)
Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation          1,528,587          1,528,587          1,604,534             (75,947)
Intangible Asset Building/Equipment Lease Net of 
Accumulated Amortization

         5,276,690          5,276,690          5,862,352            (585,662)

Total Non-Current Assets          6,805,277          6,805,277          7,470,141            (664,864)
    Deferred Outflows of Resources - GASB 68 & 75                     -            1,451,923          1,451,923          1,486,580             (34,657)
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources                     -            1,451,923          1,451,923          1,486,580             (34,657)
Total Assets        12,617,582          1,451,923        14,069,505        15,915,616         (1,846,111)

Liabilities
   Current Liabilities
      Accounts Payable             143,206             143,206             471,968            (328,762)
Accrued Payroll and Fringe Benefits             456,545             456,545             651,737            (195,191)
Unearned Revenue             950,104             950,104          4,303,492         (3,353,388)
      Accrued Building/Equipment Lease             250,768             250,768             256,020               (5,252)
Total Current Liabilities          1,800,624          1,800,624          5,683,216         (3,882,592)
   Non-Current
      Accrued PTO & Sick Leave             525,342             525,342             554,041             (28,698)
      Other Mortgages-Deferred Income                     -                       -                  3,255               (3,255)
      Accrued Building/Equipment Lease          5,112,316          5,112,316          5,614,005            (501,689)
      GASB 68 & 75                     -            2,000,733          2,000,733          4,689,161         (2,688,428)
Total Non-Current          5,637,659          2,000,733          7,638,392        10,860,462         (3,222,070)
     Deferred Inflows of Resources - GASB 68 & 75                     -            4,921,120          4,538,857          4,538,857          4,538,857 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources                     -            4,921,120          4,921,120          4,538,857             382,263 
Total Liabilities          7,438,282          6,921,853        14,360,135        21,082,535         (6,722,400)

Net Position
   Beginning Net Position             511,978             511,978         (1,400,466)          1,912,444 
   Current YTD Net Income            (802,608)            (802,608)         (3,766,454)          2,963,846 
Total Net Position          5,179,300         (5,469,930)            (290,630)         (5,166,920)          4,876,290 
Total Liabilities and Net Position        12,617,582          1,451,923        14,069,505        15,915,616         (1,846,110)



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
111 Liberty St. Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

P. 614.228.2663 | F. 614.228.1904
info@morpc.org | www.morpc.org



Memorandum 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Executive Committee 
Officers and Board Members 

Kerstin Carr 
Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior Director of Planning 

July 31, 2023 

Proposed Resolution 09-23: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2023-2025 Regional Data 
Agenda” 

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission's (MORPC’s) 2023-2025 
Regional Data Agenda. The Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) collaborated to create an 
action oriented and well-defined agenda leveraging MORPC, RDAC, and working group strengths. It 
comprises five overarching areas of activity and 15 objectives that advance the interests of MORPC 
members and other stakeholders in the Central Ohio region. 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee reviewed and approved the final 2023-2025 Regional Data 
Agenda at its June 6, 2023 meeting. 

The 2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda serves as a framework for MORPC staff, RDAC, and working 
groups to guide future data-related projects and initiatives. The Regional Data Agenda identifies the 
actions best suited to achieve specific regionally impactful objectives over the next few years. 

The RDAC agreed to a three-year timeframe for the Regional Data Agenda to ensure that the aims 
and objectives remain relevant, while still allowing enough time to realize measurable outcomes. 
Prioritization of work within the existing agenda will be reviewed and updated on a continual basis; 
however, at the end of the three-year timeframe, the full agenda will be reviewed, edited, and re-
written as necessary. 

Attachment:  Resolution 09-23 



RESOLUTION 09-23 

“Adoption of MORPC's 2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda” 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the 
Regional Data Advisory Committee collaborated to create a robust and well-defined 2021-2022 
Regional Data Agenda; and 

WHEREAS, the 2021-2022 Regional Data Agenda was adopted by MORPC Members on May 
9, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Data Agenda was in need of update and revision to support MORPC’s 
ongoing vision of a diverse community of local governments and stakeholders collaborating on 
data-related practices, opportunities, and tools to support regional growth and vitality in the 
Central Ohio region; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda now provides a framework for the goals and 
objectives that guide MORPC's Regional Data Advisory Committee, working groups, members, 
and staff; and 

WHEREAS, Action Item 1 is “Foster value-added interactions among local governments and 
other stakeholders to enhance the use of data through robust sharing of best practices, analyt-
ics, and research in support of improved data-driven decision making in our region”; and 

WHEREAS, Action Item 2 is “Educate & Inspire: Provide and champion learning opportunities to 
increase technical capacity and appropriate leveraging of data; catalyzing local governments 
and other stakeholders to adopt improved methods in support of better-informed decision 
making in our region”; and 

WHEREAS, Action Item 3 is “Scale & Support: Help empower local governments and other 
stakeholders to incubate and fund data-related pilot projects and develop talent, while ensuring 
existing efforts are sustainably supported in our ever-changing regional landscape”; and 

WHEREAS, Action Item 4 is “Expand & Include: Identify barriers and provide solutions to 
improve inclusive and equitable data access across our region”; and 

WHEREAS, Action Item 5 is “Secure & Protect: Promote renewed focus on the security and re-
silience of systems and data through best practices and policy reviews with local governments 
and other stakeholders in the region”; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC is committed to furthering data initiatives that contribute to the overall 
health, quality of life and economic prosperity of the region; now therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda. 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 



Resolution 09-23 

Page 2 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and ac-
tions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolu-
tion were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

Erik J. Janas, Chair 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

Effective date: August 10, 2023 
Submitted by: Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior Director of 

Planning 
Prepared by: Dave Dixon, Director of Data Analytics & Strategy 
Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: August 10, 2023 
Attachment:  2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda 



2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda 

Page 1 

2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda 

(1) CONVENE & COLLABORATE

Foster value-added interactions among local governments and other stakeholders to 
enhance the use of data through robust sharing of best practices, analytics, and 

research in support of improved data-driven decision making in our region. 

Partner Regionally: Create partnerships and collaboration among local governments and other stakeholders 
to leverage resources and expertise for data-related projects and initiatives.  

Share Information: Engage local governments and other stakeholders to develop data-sharing agreements to 
improve decision-making. Develop and implement data models to support this objective and operationalize 
analyses that generate insights from the data. 

Engage the Community: Increase the number and scope of MORPC member, private sector and community 
organization participants in the Regional Data & Information Users Group (RIDG), Central Ohio GIS Users 
Group (COGUG), and annual Data Day event. 

(2) EDUCATE & INSPIRE

Provide and champion learning opportunities to increase technical capacity and 
appropriate leveraging of data; catalyzing local governments and other stakeholders to 
adopt improved methods in support of better-informed decision making in our region. 

Address Bias: Lead the regional conversation on data bias and model bias to improve the use and future 
development of data and models to empower decision makers in local government and other stakeholders to 
better serve diverse communities. 

Explore & Leverage AI: Develop example artificial intelligence (AI) policies, use cases, and methods for 
improving employee productivity and service delivery, while aiming to mitigate misinformation and avoid other 
unintended consequences. Engage the community on appropriate uses of AI to ensure both accuracy and fit of 
purpose. 

Inspire Novel Analytics: Showcase data analytics applications for public service by featuring successful 
implementations to help local governments and other stakeholders toward realizing improved outcomes. 

(3) SCALE & SUPPORT

Help empower local governments and other stakeholders to incubate and fund data-
related pilot projects and develop talent, while ensuring existing efforts are sustainably 

supported in our ever-changing regional landscape. 
Track Job Quality & Equity: Support a holistic approach to how the region captures and evaluates job quality 
data and equity gaps in the workforce system, empowering local governments and workforce boards to pursue 
coordinated strategies toward better employment outcomes. 

Support Pilots: Assist local governments and K-12 schools in securing sustainable funding sources and 
planning pilot programs or other new data-centric initiatives focused on the critical policy areas of workforce 
development, education, transportation and housing. 

Evaluate & Learn from Pilots: Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of data-related pilots, and use this 
feedback to continually improve and refine strategies and approaches. Share lessons learned and success 
stories to aide in replicating success. 

Resolution 09-23 Attachment



2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda 

Page 2 

(4) EXPAND & INCLUDE

Identify barriers and provide solutions to improve inclusive and equitable data access 
across our region. 

Identify Data Needs: Document and prioritize unmet data-related needs of local governments and other 
stakeholders to enhance data equity and access. 

Partner on Digital Equity: Work with  local governments and other stakeholders to develop and host digital 
equity-centered workshops, and connect individuals to data policy resources which will help Central Ohio to be at 
the forefront of digital equity and related data governance practices. 

Improve Access to MORPC Data: Support decision makers in local government and other stakeholders through 
more convenient access to publicly available data sets and related documentation, such as methods, reports, 
and community-level insights. 

(5) SECURE & PROTECT

Promote renewed focus on the security and resilience of systems and data through best 
practices and policy reviews with local governments and other stakeholders in the 

region. 
Build Cybersecurity Capacity: Establish a Regional Data Advisory Committee cybersecurity working group, 
focused on advising local municipalities cybersecurity matters of elevated importance within the civic sector. 

Partner on Cybersecurity: Work with local governments and other stakeholders to assess the feasibility and 
utility of facilitating local government and community organization cybersecurity self-assessments, aimed at 
advancing security improvements. 

Assess Shared Savings Opportunities: Explore potential MORPC member organization cost savings through 
joint purchasing or shared cybersecurity services with the aim of lowering the cost burden and/or enabling 
existing funding for services to afford additional protections. 



��������	�
��
����
����
�������
 ��������
� !��"#$
%$#""�"!
&�''�((��"
)* +,-�. 
&�''�--  
�//�+ 0(
#"�
1�#0�
� '2 0(
3�+4
5�$$6
70#"(8�0-#-��"
9-,�:
;�0 +-�06
<"- 0�'
9 "��0
;�0 +-�0
�/
%0�!0#''�"!
=,$:
>?6
@A@>
%0�8�( �
� (�$,-��"
BA�@>C
D�	EF��GHG�I
EF�
�J�K	EGL�
�G��KE��
E�
��E��
G�E�
��
G�E��I�L������E�M
�I������E
NGEF
EF�
���E��M
�FG�
����OGE
�	EF��GEP
Q��
����OGE
�	RR��EGL�
S�Q��OE�	KE	��T
� (�$,-��"
?A�@>
#,-��0�U (
-� 
)* +,-�. 
;�0 +-�0
-�
 "- 0
�"-�
#"
<"- 0!�. 0"' "-#$
V!0  ' "-
W<5VX
Y�-�
-� 
& "-0#$
����
70#"(�-
V,-��0�-:
W&�7VX
#"�
0 + �. 
/,"�(
-�
#�'�"�(- 0
-� 
70#"(�-
9,88�0-�. 
<"/0#(-0,+-,0 
W79<X
80�!0#'
+�'8�" "-
�/
-� 
Z�"4[9
�"�-�#-�. \
Z#,"+� �
�"
@A@A6
-� 
Z�"4[9
�"�-�#-�. 
�(
#
+�$$#2�0#-��"
2 -Y  "
&�7V6
-� 
&�-:
�/
&�$,'2,(6
-� 
��������
� !��"#$
%$#""�"!
&�''�((��"
W���%&X6
#"�
]0#"4$�"
&�,"-:
W-�! -� 06
-� 
Z�"4[9
%#0-" 0(X
-�
�'8$ ' "-
��!�
+#8#+�-:6
0#8��
-0#"(�-
#"�
 *8#"�
�"- !0#- �
'�2�$�-:
(�$,-��"(
#+0�((
& "-0#$
����\
�,+�
Y�04
�#(
2  "
+�'8$ - �
�. 0
-� 
$#(-
-�0  
: #0(
�"+$,��"!
#
Z�"4[9
]0#' Y�04
W@A@AX6
Z�"4[9
(-#- 
�/
��2�$�-:
0 8�0-
W@A@?X6
Z<3̂ [9
&�'',"�-:
V+-��"
%$#"
#"�
(�!"�/�+#"-
80�_ +-
� . $�8' "-
Y�04
�"
-� 
�"�-�#$
-�0  
��!�
+#8#+�-:
-0#"(�-
+�00���0(\
��0 
�"/�0'#-��"
�(
#.#�$#2$ 
#-
YYY\$�"4,(+�$,'2,(\+�'\
V
+�'8�" "-
�/
-� 
Z�"4[9
�"�-�#-�. 
�(
-�
�"+0 #( 
#++ ((
-�
-0#"(�-
-�0�,!�
-0#"(�-
(,88�0-�. 
�"/0#(-0,+-,0 
W79<X\

79<
+#"
2 
� (+0�2 �
#(
/#+�$�-� (
-�#-
�'80�. 
#++ ((
-�
-0#"(�-
(,+�
#(
8 � (-0�#"6
2�+:+$�(-6
#"�
�-� 0
(#/ -:
#"�
#++ ((�2�$�-:
 "�#"+ ' "-(\
Z !�($#-�. 
#' "�' "-(
�"
@A@@
-�
-� 
����
� .�( �
&�� 
9 +-��"
W��&X
>À\>ab
80�.�� 
/�0
���%&
-�
�. 0(  
#"�
#�'�"�(- 0
#
79<
%0�!0#'
�"+$,��"!
-� 
%�$�+� (6
-� 
� . $�8' "-
�/
#
&#8�-#$
<'80�. ' "-
%0�!0#'
W&<%X6
#"�
&#8�-#$
<'80�. ' "-
1,�! -
W&<1X\

���%&
�"
8#0-" 0(��8
Y�-�
&�7V
�#(
2  "
$ #��"!
'  -�"!(
#"�
Y�04(��8(
�. 0
-� 
8#(-
: #0
Y�-�
_,0�(��+-��"(
-�0�,!��,-
-� 
&�7V
( 0.�+ 
#0 #
-�
� . $�8
-� 
(-0,+-,0 
#"�
80�+ ((
/�0
-� 
79<
80�!0#'\
7� 
Y�04
�#(
80�!0 (( �
-�
-� 
8��"-
-�#-
���%&
#"�
&�7V
#0 
0 #�:
-�
/�0'#$$:
( -
,8
-� 
79<
80�!0#'
8 0
-� 
��&
#"�
�#. 
� . $�8 �
#"
<5V
� -#�$�"!
-� 
0�$ (
#"�
0 (8�"(�2�$�-� (
�/
 #+�
�0!#"�U#-��"
�"
-� 
79<
80�!0#'
#�'�"�(-0#-��"\
7��(
#!0  ' "-
�"+$,� (
&�7V
80�.���"!
/,"�(
-�
���%&
2 !�""�"!
�"
@A@b
/�0
79<
80�!0#'
#�'�"�(-0#-��"\





���������	���
������������������������������	���
�����������



�� �������	�
��������������������������������������������������������� �������������!��� "� ����!����#����$%&�'&($)*+�,%-.�/)*(0-$�12$%.)-$3�4.)�/)*(0-$�5266.)$-7&�8(4)*0$)29$2)&:��;<���=�>�?@A��BCD���BCB?BE?BFA�BG�E�HIJJEKILE?BIC�KA?MAAC�?@A�NAC?LEJ��@BI��LECGB?�=O?@ILB?P�QN��=R>�?@A�NB?P�IS�NIJOTKOG>�?@A�UBV�@BI��AWBICEJ�XJECCBCW�NITTBGGBIC�QU��XNR>�ECV�YLECDJBC�NIOC?P�Q?IWA?@AL>�?@A��BCD���XEL?CALGR�?I�BTZJATAC?�@BW@�HEZEHB?P>�LEZBV�?LECGB?�ECV�A[ZECV�BC?AWLE?AV�TIKBJB?P�GIJO?BICG�EHLIGG�NAC?LEJ��@BI\�ECV��;<���=�>�E�GOKGA?�IS�?@A��BCD���BCB?BE?BFA�BG�?I�BTZLIFA�?LECGB?�GALFBHA�ECV�?I�BCHLAEGA�EHHAGG�?I�?LECGB?�?@LIOW@�?LECGB?�GOZZIL?BFA�BCSLEG?LOH?OLA�Q��	R>�M@BH@�N��=�BG�ACEKJAV�?I�SOCV�ZOLGOEC?�?I��@BI��AFBGAV�NIVA�Q��NR��AH?BIC���]̂�_̀\�ECV��;<���=�>��AH?BIC���]̂���?I���]̂_��IS�?@A���N�FAG?G�?@A�N��=�aIELV�IS��LOG?AAG�MB?@�?@A�ZIMAL�?I�IFALGAA�N��=>�BCHJOVBCW�GALFBHA�ZJECCBCW�ECV�SBCECHBEJ�TECEWATAC?\�ECV��;<���=�>�U��XN�MBJJ�GALFA�EG�?@A�ZLIWLET�EVTBCBG?LE?IL�SIL�?@A���	�XLIWLET�EG�VASBCAV�KP���N��AH?BIC���]̂�_̀\�ECV��;<���=�>�N��=�MBJJ�ZLIFBVA�?I�U��XN�EG�IO?JBCAV�BC�?@A�E??EH@AV�	C?ALWIFALCTAC?EJ�=WLAATAC?\�CIM�?@ALASILA��a��	�������b�c�ad��<��efghijfi�klmfin�o�po�nnfnm�qieefrrfins���AH?BIC��̂� �@E?�?@A�A[AHO?BFA�VBLAH?IL�BG�@ALAKP�EO?@ILBtAV�?I�AC?AL�BC?I�EC�	u=�BC�GOKG?EC?BEJJP�?@A�SILT�EG�E??EH@AV�ECV�EHHAZ?�SOCVBCW�SLIT�N��=�?I�EVTBCBG?AL�?@A���	�ZLIWLET̂���AH?BIC��̂� �@E?�?@A�A[AHO?BFA�VBLAH?IL�BG�EO?@ILBtAV�?I�EZZLIFA�ICA�IL�TILA�A[?ACGBICG�SIL�ZALSILTECHA�IS�GALFBHAG�OCVAL�?@A�SILAWIBCW�EWLAATAC?G�ECV�H@ECWA�ILVALG�SIL�ETIOC?G�OZ�?I�?@A�SBCECHBEJ�EO?@ILBtE?BIC�JAFAJG�BC�?@A�U��XN�KPJEMG�MB?@IO?�SOL?@AL�EO?@ILBtE?BIC�SLIT�?@BG�NITTBGGBIĈ�����AH?BIC��̂� ��@E?�?@A�A[AHO?BFA�VBLAH?IL�BG�EO?@ILBtAV�?I�?EDA�GOH@�I?@AL�EH?BIC�ECV�A[AHO?A�ECV�VAJBFAL�GOH@�I?@AL�VIHOTAC?G�EG>�EH?BCW�MB?@�?@A�EVFBHA�IS�JAWEJ�HIOCGAJ>�@A�G@EJJ�VAAT�CAHAGGELP�ECV�EZZLIZLBE?A�?I�HELLP�IO?�?@A�BC?AC?�IS�?@BG�LAGIJO?BIĈ���AH?BIC�̀̂� ��@E?�?@BG�NITTBGGBIC�SBCVG�ECV�VA?ALTBCAG�?@E?�EJJ�SILTEJ�VAJBKALE?BICG�ECV�EH?BICG�IS�?@BG�NITTBGGBIC�HICHALCBCW�ECV�LAJE?BCW�?I�?@A�EVIZ?BIC�IS�?@BG�LAGIJO?BIC�MALA�?EDAC�BC�IZAC�TAA?BCWG�IS�?@BG�NITTBGGBIĈ�� ���vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv���LBD�wECEG>�N@EBL�� � � � � � efghijfi�klmfin�o�po�nnfnm�qieefrrfin���



���������	
����
����
�

���������
�����
 ������
���
����
���������
���
 ��� 
!����
"#�	�$�#�����	
�����
%�#����#�
&	��#��
��	��#
%�#����#
��
�#��#����	�
�#�$�#��
���
 �#��#����	�
�����
���'�#����
 
 ('��
�������
)���
������	
*��+��
,�#
�����	
�����
 ������
���
����
�����'��	��

 -����#
"#�	���
��$$�#����
&	�#���#����#�
��#����	�





��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

��� !"#$%&�$&"'#($�#)**+&$(,%�('-&"#$&).$)&%�"/&%%!%'$�0%$1%%'�.%'$&"2�+3(+�$&"'#($�")$3+&($4�"'5�!(56+3(+�&%/(+'"2�*2"''('/�.+!!(##(+'�� 	7����
���8��7���	��
������7����9�:.+$";��
<��7����<��7��������
�8��8�

�
�����������
�:!+&*.;�����������7����������	��
���������������
������������������
��:�7��"=>??@?AB;������������C�D���� ��� E��FG��HIJ�� ��� 	7����<��7��������
�8��8�

�
�����������
�K�88�<���8��������
���������������
�������������������:�7��*>L=>M@;�
<����7��N�
OH���
��������������
��8�
��
�����
���7���K��7���	���� E�� H
<����7��	��
���������������
������������������D���	��K�88������<���
<��������7��
�K���8�����P��
�������������
<��7������������ ��� �����������������7�����������<��
��������������7��	��
���������������
����������������������<���
�<�Q9��7���������<���<��������
� ��� RS��� J�� �
���
��<������
�����7�����8��Q8������
���
<�<�����<�����Q�<��
��7����������
�D���	���
<�����������������7���������
<���
<����
������7����������
���� �G�TT�TI	�� #?UBVLA�WX� 5?YVAVBVLAZX�� �
��<<����
�����7��������<���
�<��8��K7�����
��7��Q�<9�����7����������
�D�������8�[�<���������<��
��7����������
��K7�����7���8��������������K�8<�
�����7��K������\����������8�[����
�����<���
�<��
��7�������7�<�%]̂V_VB�"���� #?UBVLA�̀X� $?>@X�� 	7��	��
���������������
������������������a��������������7�88������
��������C�D���� �:�7��.L@@?AU?@?AB�5MB?;��
<��7�88��
<D�K7�
������
���<�Q9�Q��7���������:�7��$?>@VAMBVLA�5MB?bX�� 	7����������
���7�88�Q���������������������<�����7���7��
<��
�8<�
���7��	����
����
�J������� #?UBVLA�cX� $>MAZVB�#deeL>BVf?�(AY>MZB>dUBd>?�*>L=>M@�-dAgVA=X�� :�;� hijk�lmnop�jmq��	7����
���8��7���	��
������7����9�E���<����	�������K�88�Q��

rstuvwxyuz�{|}~���xx����szx



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

��� ��!�
����������������������
�"��
#�
����$���
������%��������
�������������"��&�
��&�����������������'�
#��%������#�������'��#������
�#������
�����()������
�
���
#����()���
��%������
�"�$���$�����*�����������
#���	����������
�����
�"���+���������	����������������������"�$#���!�����$$�,��)���$�����*���$$�����
������
�
�����	��"�$$������#���
#�
�������&��	��
���������������
�������������������'���#��
�����
���������#�������&��
�"��
������#�$��%-���������#��� .'/� 0112324567�895125:�;49<=>?��@$���'$���
��������������������
#�
��"�$$A��%���$�B����&���$���$-������-��������-������#���$��������������
#��&�������C������'�����
#�'�%�
#�	��
���������������
������������
#�
����� DEFGHIJ�KL�MNOJPHG�DQRRINGHSE�TJUNOPGNQFGQNE�VNIWNOX�YZXHJHPGNOGHIJ�[IPGPL�� 	&���

�$��#��
��������������������&��	��
���������������
�����������������������&���'%�#������
�#����'�\�� ��� ���]�����̂���],��-�������(���]���-����������
#��'��+�
��%������#��
����������������"�$$�'���'C����#������ ��)��

�$��
��������
�������� 	&��#����
��#������������� ��
#����̂����$������&��$�����#����
�����"��!�#������&����$�����*��
�������
������
��'��������	������������������������ ��	��"�$$�'���*��
#�
����������
�����&��	��
���������������
������������
#�
���������
������&����%�	����#��
��������
��
#��#���
������������ �����	�_����������������&�
����#��
���&�����������&����������
�-��&�������������������
����������
����#�����&��&��	��
���������������
��������������������#��
������������������� DEFGHIJ�̀L�VOaXEJG�IU�MNOJPHG�DQRRINGHSE�TJUNOPGNQFGQNE�VNIWNOX�YZXHJHPGNOGHSE�[IPGPL�� �������&�$$�'�$$��
���$$��
�������&�����������&��	��
���������������
��������������������#��
���������������������	��b�
��%�,�������&�%����'���

�
���
����̂�.���&���c�$$�d���/����	���&�$$���������%��
��'%�e�'���%�,��� ��	���&�$$���$�B��$���$�����&������#��
�����������������
����̂���'��+�
��'�$$������������������	��"�$$��
$%�'����
������&����	����$���	�*�f��%���������
��&��g����'������̂�h�
���$�@$�����
��	&����������
��"�$$����������$$%������
��������&����	����$�����*�'�$$����
�������������
%����������&��'�$$����
�����������$���#����	��
���������������
��������������$���������'��+�
�$%�������#��
#A��������
���#�
$������	���
#����������$$%��������
�



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

��� !����
�������
��
���"���������
����� #$%&'()�*+� ,-./�#$01'%$�234)��� ��	��!�55������6�������������5�
����7����5�8�6�79��"��	��
���������������
��������������������������5�
��"�������9����������5����������
���5�
��	"����	���"������
���	��
�����5�
�:#;.2<�!�55�7�������6�6�����"�����������������9��!��9����������	���6�����������7����6��
��"������������������������=������5�����
��>?"�7���������"���������
���"�55��
�56������������"����	��������������@���?�6�������9����@��
6��"�����������
����	����� #$%&'()�A+� .04)B'&�#CDD(0&'1$�E)F04B&0C%&C0$�,(GG'&&$$B+�� 	"��	��
���������������
�������������������!�55�7����6������������
�
��7�6�����
�56�
����H��6���"�������������:I,<@�	��"
���5�J��K�
��L�����:.MN<@��
6���	��"
���5�����6�
���
������������:.,,<��������9�����������6�������������
�6��� 	"����	��O���6�!�55����������"����������������������6�5�
��������������"��
�>?"�7���O������
�����5����������6�������	�P������
���������������=��
��"����	����������������
6��7��Q�
����5�����?�8�
�@���	���"�55�6������
��"�!�����
�����������"����
����"��	��
���������������
������������������������������������55��� #$%&'()�R+� .04)B'&�#CDD(0&'1$�E)F04B&0C%&C0$�S$F')'&'()�4)T�NC'T$3')$B+�� 	"��6���
����
��
6����=�����5���7�5��9���6�5�
��������"����������!�55�7��6���6�6��
�79��"��H�
KU������
�����
6�	��
���������������
������������
��������"���"�����55�7���������������"��	"��6����
���"�55�7���
�56�6����>?"�7���V��
6��6���6����5���������9�����9������5�
���6���"��6���5����
������"����O��
6������� �"�56��"����7����6�������
�9��7������=���������������
�������������"��6���
����
@��"��5��������������5��"�55�7��������"����	����� #$%&'()�W+� ,4D'&43�EGD0(1$G$)&�234)�4)T�,4D'&43�EGD0(1$G$)&�XCTY$&+�� ��������5����������
���5�
�Z,E2<��
6�������5����������
��O6����Z,EX[��"�55�7�����
���
�6�79��������6��
����������������6�6�����6�����"��	��
���������������
���������������������� #$%&'()�\]+� ,-./�#&4FF�;$BD()B'̂'3'&'$B+�� ��	���"�55������6�������
����
�������
������������6�
�����6��
������������������



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

��� !��"��
��������
#��$����	��%���#����	��������� ��	����&����
�&#�'�!������
���&�����#���'��$����&&�"�
�(��)�*�#���&�����&��
���"��$��$��*	���
#�*+,��)�*�
�
���&����������������#�
�������
��-����!�����
���)������&�
�����
���������
���"��$����$��!�������
��)������#�
����	���������������������
#��$���$������
���	��
�����&�
�����#���&����
������$��������&�����
�)��!�������
������&��
���)���	��%���#�����#�
����
�)�������������
��
��&&�	��
���������������
�����������������������
#��#��
�����������
����
��)��!�����

�&���&�����.�����
����&&�����
������#���&����
������$����%�� /012345�667� 89:;<�/2=>>�:0?@45?3A3B3230?7�� ��������������
��!&��������������
���$���#��
��������
�����$������������ ��������&����
�&#��!������
���&�����#�����$����&&�"�
�(��)�����#�
����
�"��$���	��	��
���������������
�����������&�����
�)��#��
������
���
#���������
���$��	��
���������������
�������������������)���
��
�
���&&�	��
���������������
����������������������)�C�#�
���$�����������������������
#�	��
���������������
�������������&�����-��#�&�
���)�D���&���
���
#����
���
�
���$����%��
#�����)�D���&���
���$��#�����
#����&����
�����������������E������&�����
�� ������������������
��FGH��&&���������������!�������#��
�������$�������������"�&&�����##����
�&��������������������$�����������
�'�D����I������
�'��
#�����
������
��I�J
������
����������� /012345�6K7� <9LM�N4=OP�4>�LOQ?200?�:0?@45?3A3B3230?7�� 	$����	��%���#���������
��!&�������������
���$����&�������
#���#�&�
��'��$�����'��
#��$����%����	��������"�&&�
����������
#���#�&���
����������
��
���
�����&�������$���
#��������&���
��	��
���������������
��������������E������	$����	��%���#�"�&&�$�����$����"�����������������#��&�
���$���
#���#�&���
����������
��
���
�����&�������$���
#��������&���
��	��
���������������
��������������E�������� /012345�6R7� 89:;<�LO=5?@4O2=2345�;4B31S�<4TT32200�:0?@45?3A3B3230?7�



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

���� 	!��	��
���������
���"��#�����������$�""������$��
%��
�����������!��	��
���������������
��������������������
����!���������"���
����
���������
��"�

�
�����������
%����������%�%����
��&����������""#&��!��	��
���������
����������
���������&�������������������� '���
��������������%����"#�(�""�$�)�	*+��+,	��-��*���	��,��	��.	*���	/�0#1���� �� ,���1�2��

�������
3����
�	��"�1������%�
�4��+���	*+���5��*����+6��,�-��-�,,�,6����������,��� 0#1���� �� ,���1�7�""������%��3�	��"�1�+8�������5����������� '���
��������������������	��
���������������
��������������������������
�)����������� 9:;<=<>�?�



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

���� !"#$%$&$'%(�� ��� )*+,����
�-���
���.��/���	��
������/����0�� 1�� 23456����
�-���7��/��������
�.��.�

�
�����������
�� ��� 89:;;<;=>����
��������
7�����
7�����
7�
��?��@��
���	���
7������������/��	��
���������������
�������������������� A�� 5:B9:C<����
���/�������7���
���.�����-��������-��
7���7�.�
����������
���������������
������������ D�� 6B<<;=E;<;=>�FC>;����
���/���������.�������7��������/���������
��?��@��
���	���
7�������� G�� H;:<I=C>IB=�FC>;����
���/��7������	���
7���������������������
�����/���������
�������/����� J�� KL=M�	/�����
7�������7�7�?0���	�-��
7��
0���/����
���0�����	��
���������������
�������������������������/����������.����7��
��/����������
���� N�� OIPP�FC>;����
���/���

�.�7����������@�..�?�..���	�������7��
����������������� ��� Q4H5����
���/����	���/������
���	��
�����.�
�� R�� S6����
���/��T��7���/�������������� U�� HVW����
���/��	��/
���.�X��Y�
��J����� T�� H66����
���/��	��/
���.�����7�
���
������������� ��� 6Z5����
���/��������.����������
���.�
�� [�� 6ZO����
���/��������.����������
��17����� ��� \B>IE;�8MM:;]]����
�̂�� ��������	�̂� ��
���.��/���	��
������/����0�  �[���/�N��/����������.�?�-��/���_ �̀a����
̂�R��

�������
Y����
�� �����������̂� ��7��/��������
�.��.�

�
�����������
�



��

�������	��
���������������
������������������
����	������������� ��� �

�

�

��� !!!�"�#���$�������%������!�����&�#�%��'���( �!)����
*�+�&&������,��-��������



����������	�
�������
����	��������������������	������������������������

�

�

 �!"#$%$&�%�� '(&)�&*+,-./�01*2.31�)*1+�4+5���� !"#$%$&�'�� '(&)�067*/89+,:1�&*+,-./�;<+,�=09&;>���� !"#$%$&�?�� (6.7�912.-1@�'7@1�� AB���C�����D��E�F�D�G�	���H������IHJ�� K�L������
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J����MD
�D��D
������
�	��H
�����J�N���	J�����D����HH�M
	�O�K�L�P����D�������N���������Q�H��
�N��	N�������
�	�RS�T���������D�����
��N���N�������D����	���H���	������
�	������
	��	�	���������N�U�I�
N���U�����	M�J�U���DM�J�U�I
V�M�J�U�����N����
�	��	N�����������������������H���N�����D�����
�
�	��������
���IJ��D�����
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J��D���N��	�����D��M
�����	��
����������	�
�����
H
�JW�� KXL���
��������	N
	����Y�����N����
I�N�
	�N
�
�
�	�K�LK�L�����D
������
�	U������
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J��D�HH��	����
	����������	���M
�D��D���H
��IH�����	�
��U���	
�
�H��������
�	�U��	N���M	�D
��H�����N�M
�D
	��D�����
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�JZ������
���
�H�I��	N��
��������	N����D���Y������� KEL��D�����
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J��D�HH���I�
�����D��������	�����������H�����D�������	
	��I���N�����D���H
��IH��N��
�	���N�������H
��	�H�		
	������	
[��
�	��� K�L��D��������H
��	�H�		
	������	
[��
�	��D�HHU��	����H������	��		��H�I��
�U����
�M��	N����������N�	J��	J��������	����I�
���N����
��IJ��	����
����
�����������
��������	
	��I���N��	N��D�HH�	��
�J��D�����
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J�����D�������H����N�	
�H��K�L��D�����
�	�H����	�
�����D��
�J��D�HH��Q�	N���	N���	HJ�������D��
[�N�
	��	������N��������	��



�

��

�������	
������ ��������������������������������������� �!"#�$�������##����%%�!�&������'��&�����(�&���)*��� ��(�&#�+�������,�-����&�.�&�!#�&��������#����-�&$�!����/0�1� 2"�"�#�3,�4546��789:1;�� �&�<����������"#����33�46=�>0
?@��ABA�C�?@���D�E
?AF��	A��E?���?����?���A�?���C������?G�HA?@�?@���@A��/�I��?���?��J�/�F�K�I���?�L�/�/M�J���?@��:
KN�OP�QRQS�?@��
C@�:
���SRP�QRQT�U����V��?@��AB�?A���0GGAG?��E��W��C����LUV0WM���	�?����?���A�?����K�?�	�G
XE��?��E?GY��Z�&����[�[��&������������!��#&�!#���\�#��#��������.�<�&#���#��%�.�$���<���#�]�.�.̂�#����<�����#�#���_����+��#��&�̀�#����2����#��!���&��&���]_+2�̂����<�&#������%�Z&��a������"�#[b�c�����"&!���%�%"�������%���&���%&���#���db-b�.�<�&#���#��%����&�[�����#���db-b�.�<�&#���#��%�_���#������_"����-�&$�!�����!�"�����#���e�\�f�!����_�������&�[�2����#��!���&��&���]ef_�2�̂b��c���<&��&�����!�"����\�&a�([�������#��<&�$����!����#���#�a�,���������<�!#����,����#����#�����%����&�[��%%�!���![�����"&����"!��������#��������\��#��&�̀�#������#�&����,�����g"���#[�!��#&����$�&�����!����#�!����b�������\����<&�$�������<�!#������&$�!�������g"���#[�!��#&���#��$�&�%[�\�&a�<�&%�&��������&���#�����"�#&[�����<&��&����#����&��b�c������#����#�����%�\��#��&�̀�#������#�&����,����#��������hihjklmjni�oplq�omii�rh�strjpuklnjkhv�kp�rtsmuhsshs�mu�wxyz{|s�shl}mjh�nlhn~�c���'�<�&#�����f�%&��#&"!#"&��e�\�]'fê��&��#���&�����#��%�&��"�[�3,�4546,�#�&�"����"���65,�454�,�#�#�����,�54,6��b�c�����%"����&�<&����#���!��(��������"�#�#��#���!�"����%"����%�&�#�&&�#�&����<&�$��"��[���&$�!���([�#���<&�$���&��e-�����#���#&���#������������#�&&�#�&[�̀�<�!����b�c���'fe�%"�������#�����&��#���&�����#��&��#��(���<&�����"#��$�&�����[��&�<�&���b���2���#������[,�#���<&�$��"��[��<<&�$�������'fe�_+2�����"�#��%�&�(�#������������%�&��&��e-�#�&&�#�&�����&����&��&�#�����&�������[���#�!�<�#��b�+�����#�����&�����#���&����#�[�#��$����(��,�#������&����#�!�<�#���#��&����������[��&���&�����#��%�&��"�[�3,�4546,�#�&�"����"���65,�454�b�c����\�&�����"�#����$��(����<&�$����,�����#�������\�#�#����6,6�3,��6b��c���#��&,�����_+2��%"��������#����(�$��#�#������,4��,4�3b���2##�!����#=������"#����33�46�



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
����� ���!
"���
���
#���
$�%��� ���
�&
$���'�% ���
(#$#$)
&��
���
*�'+
,-
./.0
�������
*���
0/-
./.1
2� �
3�������������
�!!�!�����
4����� 
(23�4)
���
��
�����
����
��'����
!�5��������!6

78���9�:
�;�;
<=>?@=@ABC
BD@
E@F@GH?
�IJ��AKI=@
8I=@
�A@GLM
9CC<CBHAK@
NGILGH=:
>OGCOHAB
BI
BD@
�P�P
;@>HGB=@AB
IE
�A@GLM
Q;��R
�<B?@
�S:
NHGB
9
QNP�P
TU��VWRX
HAF

78���9�:
�;�;
C@@YC
BI
KIABGHKB
J<BD
BD@
Z<F��D<I
�@L<IAH?
N?HAA<AL
[I==<CC<IA
QZ��N[R
BI
<=>?@=@AB
BD<C
>GILGH=
<AC<F@
>IGB<IAC
IE
\GHAY?<A
[IOABM
EIG
@?<L<]?@
?IJ�<AKI=@
KOCBI=@GC
HAF
<=>GÎ@
BD@
@A@GLM
@EE<K<@AKM
IE
BD@<G
DIOC@DI?FX
HAF

78���9�:
BD@
_<>HGB<CHA
�AEGHCBGOKBOG@
�HJ
Q_��R
LGHAB
HLG@@=@ABC
EIG
̀O?M
�:
a�
BDGIOLD
ÒA@
�a:
ab
BIBH?
cW:Ta:�WV
HAF
J<??
]@
?@̂@GHL@F
J<BD
IBD@G
EOAFC
EGI=
?IKH?
OB<?<B<@C
HAF
IBD@G
AIA�E@F@GH?
CIOGK@CX
HAF
BDHB
BD@C@
EOAFC
G@>G@C@AB
H
KI=]<A@F
H=IOAB
BDHB
<AK?OF@C
EOAFC
EIG
B@GG<BIG<@C
>G@̂<IOC?M
C@Ĝ<K@F
]M
BD@
>GÎ<F@G
d��X
HAF

78���9�:
BD@
>G@̂<IOC?M
H>>GÎ@F
AIA�_��
879N
H=IOABC
EIG
]IBD
Z��N[
HAF
EIG=@G
d��
B@GG<BIG<@C
HG@
?HGL@G
BDHA
IG<L<AH??M
HAB<K<>HB@F
HAF
H>>GÎ@F
]M
BD@
[I==<CC<IA
<A
̀OA@
Q�@CI�?OB<IA
ab��R
HAF
AIJ
BIBH?
c�:�e�:VV�X
HAF

78���9�:
BD@
C@Ĝ<K@C
>@GEIG=@F
>OGCOHAB
BI
BD<C
KIABGHKB
J<??
]@
OAF@G
BD@
Î@GC<LDB
IE
Z��N[
HAF
]@
<=>?@=@AB@F
BDGIOLD
H
KI=]<AHB<IA
IE
Z��N[
CBHEE
HAF
?IKH?
]OC<A@CC@C
BDHB
fgh
ijklmnogflohp
qn
rstuvwi
ihgxqlh
fghfy
nmz
o{hgh|mgh

_�
��
�����S�;
_}
�8�
~�$�#2�#
����#���
4�������
�#~~����#��

�@KB<IA
�P
 �DHB
BD@
@�@KOB<̂@
F<G@KBIG
<C
HOBDIG<�@F
BI
@AB@G
<ABI
HA
HLG@@=@AB
J<BD
�;�;
EIG
̀O?M
�:
a�
BDGIOLD
̀OA@
�a:
ab
_��
8I=@
7@HBD@G<�HB<IA
9CC<CBHAK@
NGILGH=
Q879NR
EOAFC
EIG
H
BIBH?
IE
cW:Ta:�WV
HAF
EIG
̀O?M
�:
a�
BDGIOLD
ÒA@
�a:
aU
AIA�_��
879N
EOAFC
EIG
H
BIBH?
IE
c�:�e�:VV�
HAF
@AB@G
<ABI
G@�?HB@F
CO]KIABGHKBCP

�@KB<IA
P
 �DHB
BD@
@�@KOB<̂@
F<G@KBIG
<C
D@G@]M
HOBDIG<�@F
BI
H>>GÎ@
IA@
IG
=IG@
@�B@A�C<IAC
IE
B<=@
AIB
BI
@�K@@F
�Va
FHMC
<A
BD@
HLLG@LHB@
EIG
>@GEIG=HAK@
IE
C@G�<̂K@C
OAF@G
BD@
EIG@LI<AL
HLG@@=@ABC
HAF
KIABGHKB
KDHAL@C
AIB
BI
@�K@@F
a
>@GK@AB
IE
BD@
BIBH?
HLG@@=@AB
>G<K@
J<BDIOB
EOGBD@G
HOBDIG<�HB<IA
EGI=
BD<C
[I=�=<CC<IAP

�@KB<IA
�P
 �DHB
BD@
@�@KOB<̂@
F<G@KBIG
<C
HOBDIG<�@F
BI
BHY@
COKD
IBD@G
HKB<IA
HAF
@�@KOB@
HAF
F@?<̂@G
COKD
IBD@G
FIKO=@ABC
HC:
HKB<AL
J<BD
BD@
HF̂<K@
IE
?@LH?
KIOAC@?:
D@
CDH??
F@@=
A@K@CCHGM
HAF
H>>GI>G<HB@
BI
KHGGM
IOB
BD@
<AB@AB
IE
BD<C
G@CI?OB<IAP

�@KB<IA
UP

�DHB
BD<C
[I==<CC<IA
E<AFC
HAF
F@B@G=<A@C
BDHB
H??
EIG=H?
F@?<]@GHB<IAC
HAF
HK�B<IAC
IE
BD<C
[I==<CC<IA
KIAK@GA<AL
HAF
G@?HB<AL
BI
BD@
HFI>B<IA
IE
BD<C
G@CI?O�B<IA
J@G@
BHY@A
<A
I>@A
=@@B<ALC
IE
BD<C
[I==<CC<IAP









���������	
����
����



 
�����������������������������������������

����
��
��	���
�����
����� ��
!"#��$%&
'&%$$�$#
(����))��$


�**�+��,�
-���.
 /�����
�0�
0�
1�23����-
24.
 ��2���
5�����3��
1�	���
6���+����
����-�	����
1��,�+��
���7���-
24.
 ��2���
5�����3��
1�	���
6���+����
����-�	����
1��,�+��
/�������4.
 
 8���
��,���-
��-�
1�+���	
9����
:��
�+���	
-���.
 /�����
�0�
0�



	Quarterly Financial Report for 2023 Q2 - Reduced Size - 08-01-23.pdf
	Cover.pdf
	Q2 Memo with Reports - New Format - SPH Edits - 07-30-23
	Memorandum
	Budget vs. Expenses
	Operating Cash/Reserve
	Operating Income (Change in Net Position)
	Fringe Benefit and Indirect (Overhead) Variances
	Indirect (Overhead)
	Statement of Net Position

	Cover




